Hill-Crowe-White House
2419 Old Lost Mountain Road
Powder Springs, Georgia

Cobb County Register of Historic Places
Justification Report

Physical Description

The Hill-Crowe-White House sits on 1.4 acres located on the east side of Old Lost Mountain Road,
just south of the intersection of Old Lost Mountain Road and Gaydon Road. The house is
approximately 240 feet south of the intersection and approximately % mile south of Macland
Road (State Road 360). Located in the western part of unincorporated Cobb County, the Hill-
Crowe-White House is north of the Powder Springs city limits. The Folk Victorian-style cottage
faces Old Lost Mountain Road, with the associated barn located on a separate parcel to the north
of the house at the intersection of Old Lost Mountain Road and Gaydon Road. The house faces
due west, with the left facade facing north, the rear facade facing east and the right facade facing
south. The house is surrounded by other homes on large lots.

The Hill-Crowe-White House is an excellent example of a New South Cottage with Folk Victorian
elements, built c. 1900. The house is one story with a steeply-pitched hipped roof with gabled
ell projecting towards the front of the house. It has a standing seam metal roof. The house has
a partial-width front porch on the right side with the projecting gable taking up the remainder of
the front fagcade. The porch has turned posts and another projecting gable extends from the right
side of the rear fagade. A small addition with a shed roof extends from the rear facade and
contains a screened porch. The windows on the original portion of the house have one-over-one
windows, while the addition has several small circular windows and 15-light fixed sash windows.
The projecting gable on the front facade has a bay with triple windows. The siding is wood
clapboard. The house retains much of its original floorplan, which consists of a central hallway
with rooms on either side.

In 1939, the Crowe family made improvements to the house. This work included foundation
repairs, rebuilding the porches, replacing the wood shingles with a galvanized metal roof,
replacing window sashes and frames as needed, repairing plaster, and fireplace and chimney
repairs. A new barn was also constructed.

When the current owners, Bud and Susan White, purchased the house in 1988, it was in fair
condition. The previous owners, Frank and Janet Mosley, had added central heat and air and
updated the electrical system. They also added the screened porch to the rear, expanded the
kitchen, and built a detached two-car garage connected to the house via a breezeway. The
White’s added a stairway from the central hallway to access the upper area of the house, where
they added a master suite, including a bathroom and sitting room. They repaired the front porch,
installed a new metal roof, and rebuilt the adjacent outbuilding after it was hit by a large limb.
In 2006, the White’s constructed a three-car garage. The existing two-car garage was converted
into an in-law suite. The garage and in-law suite both remain attached to the house via the



breezeway on the north side of the house. A swimming pool is located to the rear of the garage
addition. The driveway is located to the left side of the original house, between the house and
the new garage.

The 1.4-acre parcel has a relatively flat topography, sloping gently down towards the southeast
corner of the property. The house is surrounded by a large lawn to the front and right sides with
landscaping along all sides of the house. Multiple large mature trees are located along the main
road frontage. Two historic outbuildings, built c. 1940, are extant on the property or on adjacent
property. The Cobb County Historic Resources Survey notes a “front gable outbuilding with
clapboard siding, standing seam roof, and ridgeline brick flue.” This outbuilding is located to the
south of the house and the survey notes it as a possible servant’s quarters; however, other
records indicate this was constructed as a potato curing house. The other outbuilding is a double-
crib barn with a front gable, vertical board siding, and a standing seam roof. The barn is located
to the north of the house, on a separate parcel that was once part of the larger farm.

Historic Significance

The house is an excellent example of a New South Cottage in western Cobb County. According
to the Cobb County Historic Resources Survey, as of 2007, it is one of twenty-five New South
Cottages in Cobb County. This makes the Hill-Crowe-White House an excellent representation of
this type in Cobb County, especially in a more rural part of the County. The house also has ties
to Cobb County’s agricultural history, as it was originally built as a farmhouse for a 60-acre farm.

The Hill-Crowe-White House was constructed sometime around 1900. Details such as the specific
year of construction and the identity of the original builder are unknown; however, later
insurance documents support the c. 1900 timeframe. The property is located in the northern
half of Land Lot 531 of District 19, 2" Section. Land Lot 531 was part of Georgia’s 1832 Gold Land
Lottery and consisted of 40 acres. The first property owner that appears in the deed records is
D. N. McEachern, when he purchased a partial interest in Land Lots 530, 531, and 580 at a public
auction from P. O. Mclain, Sheriff, on May 1, 1890. D. N. McEachern sold 40 acres (20 acres each
in the northern halves of Land Lots 530 and 531) to C. H. Anderson on April 18, 1891 for $350.
Mrs. M. A. Anderson sold the same 40 acres to Sanford Barnwell on November 5, 1896. Just days
later, Sanford Barnwell sold the 40 acres to C. E. Kimberly on November 13, 1896. On the same
day, C. E. Kimberly sold the 40 acres to W. Y. Stovall.

In the 1880 census, W. Y. Stovall was listed as a farmer living in the Powder Springs District, Cobb
County, Georgia. He was 55 years old and listed living with his wife, Sarah J. Stovall and three
stepsons. His death notice, when it appeared in the Marietta Daily Journal, described Mr. Stovall
as a “well known and wealthy citizen of Powder Springs.” Deed records also indicate Mr. Stovall
was a large landowner in the area. By the 1900 census, Sarah J. Stovall is listed as living in Powder
Springs District and is a widow. By 1910, Sarah is 74 and is still living in the Powder Springs
District, with her son and his family. William Y. Stovall passed away in 1900 and Sarah passed
away in 1910. Both are buried at the Methodist Cemetery in Powder Springs.



Mrs. S. J. Stovall sold 60 acres (20 acres each in the western half of Land Lot 507 and northern
halves of Land Lots 530 and 531) to T. F. Knox on January 1, 1910 for $648. In the 1900 census,
a Fred Knox was listed as a farmer living with his wife and five children in Hiram, Paulding County,
Georgia. By 1910, Fred Knox was living with his wife, Louella, and family in the Macland District,
Cobb County, Georgia (at the Powder Springs & Acworth Road intersection), which would have
been in the vicinity of the Hill-Crowe-White House property. When T. F. Knox sold the same 60
acres on January 13, 1911, the property was sold for $3,500 to R. T. Hill, a significant increase
from when Mr. Knox purchased the property. Macland community news in the January 13, 1911
edition of the Marietta Daily Journal noted that Mr. Knox was selling his farm for S60 per acre to
Mr. Luther Ward and was going to live on the farm for the rest of the year. The Knox family
moved to the Olive Springs area (just south Marietta) of Cobb County, where they remained
active members of the community. Thomas Frederick Knox died in 1944 and is buried at the Olive
Springs Baptist Church Cemetery in Cobb County, along with his wife Louella, who died in 1951.

R. T. Hill sold the 60 acres less than a month later to L. T. Ward on February 6, 1911. L. T. Ward
sold the property back to R. T. Hill on December 18, 1913. The Hill family owned the property for
the next 26 years. Reuben T. Hill appears in the 1870 census at age 12 living with his parents and
siblings in the Coxes District (area around Austell Road and Floyd Road south of Marietta) in Cobb
County. By the 1880 census, Reuben T. Hill is still listed with his parents at age 22, now living in
the Powder Springs District. In the 1900 census, Reuben T. Hill is age 43, living with his wife, Ida
and five children. He is listed as a farmer living in the Powder Springs District. By the 1910 census,
the Hill family was now living in the Macland District (Powder Springs & Acworth Road). Reuben
was 54 and listed as a famer living with his wife and six children. The Hill family remained in the
Macland District in the 1920 census. By the 1930 census, Ida is listed living with one of her sons
and his family in the Macland District. Reuben T. Hill passed away in 1923 and his wife Ida passed
away in 1938. Both are buried at the Flint Hill United Methodist Church Cemetery in Paulding
County.

O. L. Hill, Reuben’s son, and the other heirs sold the 60 acres to James A. Crowe in 1939. In the
1920 census, an Arthur Crow! is listed as age 23 and living with his parents (James and Lizzie) and
nine siblings. They are living in the Acworth District in Cobb County. By the 1930 census, Arthur
Crow, now 33, is married to Jewell, daughter of Reuben and Ida Hill. They are living in the Powder
Springs District with their three children. In 1940, Arthur J. Crow, 43, is living in the Macland
District on the Macland to Lost Mountain Road. He is living with his wife, Jewell, and sons James,
Forest, J. C., and Marvin.

On August 2, 1938, James A Crowe applied for a loan from the Farm Security Administration for
the purpose of purchasing the Hill farm. The loan was provided pursuant to Title | of the
Bankhead-Jones Farm Tenant Act of 1937, which was passed as part of President Franklin
Roosevelt’s New Deal. It established the Farm Security Administration, whose goals included

1 The deed records indicate James A. Crowe purchased the subject project. An Arthur Crow (spelled without the
ending “e”) appears in the census records living in the area around the subject property. All future deed records
have the family name spelled “Crowe” and it appears that way on the grave marker of James A. Crowe.



helping farmers keep their land and make property improvements. Part of their focus was also
to help tenant farmers become landowners by providing loans to help purchase farmland. The
Farm Ownership Case Files for the loan to James A. Crowe are held at the National Archives at
Atlanta.

On the loan application form dated August 2, 1938, Mr. Crowe indicated that he had been a
tenant farmer for 20 years and that his present landlord was H. V. Reeves in Powder Springs,
Georgia and that he had previously worked for D. A. Bennett, also in Powder Springs. He is listed
as 41 years old and having four sons: James, 17; Forrest, 11; J. C., 8; and Marvin, 3. On October
14, 1938, James A. Crowe signed an Option for Purchase the Hill Farm with funds loaned by the
United States Department of Agriculture, Farm Security Administration.

Before Mr. Crowe could close on the loan, the Crowe family had to provide additional
information, which provided details on the family and their farming life. The Family Information
Schedule details the family’s years of birth and their education level. Both Mr. and Mrs. Crowe
achieved a 7™ grade education. They had worked for Mr. Bennett from 1924-1928 and Mr.
Reeves from 1929-1938. Their cash income from their tenancy with Mr. Reeves was $500.00 per
year. In an accompanying narrative statement, the Unit Farm and Home Supervisors describe
Mr. and Mrs. Crowe as living in a “good community” and that Mr. Crowe had good ideas and had
gradually made improvements over the years. The Crowe family had 2 mules, 2 milk cows, 3
hogs, 40 hens, and adequate farming tools and equipment.

The Farm and Home Management Plan provides information on the family’s current year’s crops,
livestock, and produce. The Crowe family was growing cotton, corn, hay, oats, peas, and sweet
potatoes, along with their garden. They also laid out their estimates for the following year’s
crops, livestock, and product production. In a narrative statement accompanying the Farm
Management Plan, the County Farm Supervisor describes the Hill farm:

“Farm consists of 60 acres of which only some 30 acres are being cultivated this
year, 10 acres of crop land is idle. There is a 5-acre pasture and 15 acres in woods.
There is practically no waste land. Production record is high, 1938 cotton
allotment being 385# to the acre, actual production on both this farm and
adjoining farms is far above this figure.

All buildings are in a bad state of repair except the dwelling house which will need
considerable work. It is planned to put the house in a first-class state of repair and
to build new out buildings.”

Cobb County saw a decline in the number of farms from 1920 to 1930, when there were 3,233
farms in the County. The value of farms had also decreased within that decade, and one-third of
Cobb County’s farmers were in debt. While 75% of the land was being farmed, 2,600 of the farms
were mainly growing cotton.



For insurance purposes, a Valuation Report was completed on October 27, 1938. This report
indicated that the dwelling on the property was 40 years old, which means the house was indeed
likely built sometime around 1900. The house had 5 rooms and 3 chimneys. A barn was also
listed as 40 years old.

On March 23, 1939, James A. Crowe officially purchased the Hill Farm from the Hill heirs, O. L.
Hill, Mrs. Jessie Hill (widow of Zeller Hill), Mrs. Jewell Crowe, Mrs. Lena Crowe, W. A. Hill, Herschel
Hill, and Mrs. Grace Camp for $1,800. Loan files indicate that the total loan from the Farmers
Home Administration was $3,150, which allowed for funding improvements on the farm. Over
the following months, Mr. Crowe submitted plans for repairs to the house, which included a floor
plan of the house, and construction of a new barn. He also sought permission to build a lane, a
hog lot, and to repair the pasture fence. The 1939 Farm and Home Management Plan indicates
that the Crowe family produced corn, potatoes, cotton, and hay. In early 1940, Mr. Crowe
applied for a release of funds to build a potato house.

On the 1941 Farm and Home Management Plan, the Crowe family is growing 8 acres of cotton,
cotton seed, 12 acres of corn, 3.5 acres of hay, 3 acres of wheat, sweet potatoes, Irish potatoes,
and sugarcane. They had 2 cows, 25 hens, and a litter of pigs. By 1942, the family is growing 9
acres of cotton, 12 acres of corn, 2 acres of rye, 2 acres of peanuts, 2 acres of oats, sweet
potatoes, and Irish potatoes. They had a 1-acre garden. The 1942 Valuation Report indicated
that a barn, poultry house, smokehouse, and sanitary unit were all 3 years old. The potato curing
house was a year old. The house and outbuildings were valued at $2,350.

Annual Income Returns provided to the Farm Security Administration show the income from the
farm. In 1942, the Crowe’s income was $1,614.93. Their income was $1,425.53 in 1943 and
$2,306.24 in 1944. By 1945, the Valuation Report indicates the house and outbuildings were
valued at $3,250.

A Farm Security Administration memo, dated November 13, 1945, indicated that James A. Crowe
was requesting permission to pay off the loan. He planned to use money from crop sales to close
the loan. Permission was granted on November 21, 1945. Another memo from January 10, 1946
states that the account had been paid in full. A newspaper article that appeared in the January
14, 1946 edition of the Marietta Daily Journal stated that four Cobb County farmers, including
James A. Crowe, were being honored at the second annual Paid-Out Dinner on January 18, 1946.
The dinner, sponsored by the Farm Security Administration, was to recognize those farmers who
had repaid their farm loans back early. Governor Ellis Arnall was the main speaker. The article
stated that Mr. Crowe’s cash crops were sweet potatoes and cotton and he practiced soil building
and soil conservation. He had increased his cotton yield from one-half bale per acre to one bale
per acre. His net worth was now $7,000.

The Crowe family retained the farm for the next several decades. James A. Crowe began selling
off some of the land through several transactions beginning in 1961 through 1966. James Arthur
Crowe died on October 30, 1973 at age 77. He is buried next to his wife, Jewel Hill Crowe who
passed away in 1982, at the McEachern (Macland) Cemetery.



J. C. Crowe retained 1.6 acres just to the north of the farmhouse, where he and his wife built a
home where he still lives. He and Barbara Price Crowe sold the farmhouse and 1.45 acres to
Frank and Janet Mosley on June 10, 1982. Frank and Janet Mosley sold the house to Arnold
Everett White, Jr., the current owner, on September 23, 1988.

The Hill-Crowe-White House is an excellent example of a New South Cottage type farmhouse, in
a more rural area of Cobb County. The potato house is also an excellent example of an ancillary
use that adds to the historical relevance of the house. However, the area is experiencing a
gradual increase in development. The house has significant ties to Cobb County’s agricultural
past. The house was part of a working 60-acre farm that remained in two connected families for
more than 70 years. It is also an example of efforts at the national level during the Great
Depression to assist long-term tenant farmers in becoming successful landowners. The Crowe
family was able to accomplish this with the assistance of a loan from the Farmer Security
Administration.
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Photo #1
House - West (Front) Facade

Photo #2
House - Facing East




Photo #3
House - South (Right) Fagade

Photo #4
House - Rear Addition




Photo #5
House - East (Rear) Fagade

Photo #6
House - North (Left) Facade




Photo #7
Garage and In-Law Suite - Front

Photo #8
Connecting Breezeway Between
Garage and House’s North Facade




Photo #9
Garage and In-Law Suite —
East (Rear) Facade

Photo #10
Garage and In-Law Suite —
North (Left) Facade




Photo #11
Potato Curing House - Front

Photo #12
Potato Curing House - Rear




Photo #13
Landscape — Side Yard
Facing Southwest

Photo #14
Landscape — Side Yard
Facing Southeast




Photo #15
Landscape — Rear Yard Facing South

Photo #16
Landscape — Front Yard
Facing Southwest




Photo #17
Barn (Originally part of farm but
not part of the nomination.)
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| Y SOLLERLLY WARRANTY DEED
STATE OF GEORGIA, COUNTY OF coes
THIS INDENTURE, made the 23rd da September , in the year
one thousand nine hundred  AND EIGHTY-KKNKN EIGHT , between
FRANK WILLIAM MOSLEY, IR. mnd JANET W. MOSLEY
of the County of coes » and State of Georgia, s party or parties of the first

part, hereinafier called Grantor, and
ARNOLD EVERETT WHITE. JR.

as party or parties of the second part, hereinafter called Grantee (the words “Grantor” and “Grantee™ to include their
respective heirs, successors and assigns where the context Tequires or permits).

WITNESSTH that: Grantor, for and in consideration of other good and valuable considerations and the sum of
Ten and no/ 100 ($10.00) Dollars in hand paid at and before the sealing and delivery of these presents, the receipt
whereof is hereby acknowledged, has granted, bargained, sold, aliened, conveyed and confirmed, and by these
presents does grant, bargain, sell, alien, convey and confirm unto the said Grantee,

ALL THAT TRACT QR PARCEL OF LAND LYING AND BEING IN LaND LOT 531, 197TH
DISTRICT, 2ND SECTION. COBR COUNTY. GEORGIA. BEING SHOWN ON PLAT OF SURVEY
BY WEST GEORGIA SURVEYING SERVICES. INC.. REGISTEREO LAND SURVEYORS. DATED
SEPTEMBER 21. 1988, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT AN IRON PIN ON THE EASTERLY SIDE OF QLD LOST MOUNTAIN ROAD
2646.0 FEET SOUTHERLY FROM THE INTERSECTION OF THE EASTERLY SIDE oOF oLD tost
«\ MOUNTAIN ROAD THE THE CENTERLINE OF FAYDON ROAD (222.2 FEET FROM THE
\p INTERSECTION OF THE EASTFRIY SIDE OF OLD LOST MOUNTAIN ROAD AND THE
\U‘ SOUTHERLY SIDE OF GAYDON ROAD) AS MEASURED ALONS THE EASTERLY SIDE OF OLD
LOST MOUNTAIN ROAD: RUNNING THENCE NORTH 20 DEGREES 0& MINUTES EAST 275.0
FEET TO AN IRON PIN: THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES S1 MINUTES WEST,300.77 FEET ToO
AN IRON PIN: THENCE NORTH 90 DEGREES op MINUTES WEST 175.00 FEET TO AN IRON
FIN ON THE EASTERLY SIDE OF OLD LOST RNOUNTAIN ROAD: THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG

THE EASTERLY SIDE OF OLD LOST HOUNTAIN ROAD 275.0 FEET TO AN IRGN PIN AND
THE PGINT OF BEGINNING.

]d( Cabb Cousty, Georgia
Roa! Estate Transtor Tax
vis (47.0 o
e _ /0 /B BV
J#y C. Stepksnison
Clerk of Superior Court
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TN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has signed and sealed this deed, the day and year above writien,
Signed, scaled an '

, ' DIANNE PETERS
Public, Cobb Coundy,
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THIS PROPERTY (@l (IS NOT) LOCATED IN A FEDERAL FLOOD AREA AS INDICATED BY FIA
OFFICIAL FLOOD HAZARD MAPS,

THE FIELD DATA UPON WHICH THIS PLAT IS BASED HAS A CLOSURE PRECISION OF ONE
FOOT | FEET AND AN ANGUILAR ERROROF__[ 2 _* PER ANGLE POINT AND

WAS ADJUSTED USING_COMPASS RULE.

SURVEY FOR
ARNOLD EVERETT INHITE, JR.

THIS PLAT HAS BEEN CALCULATED FOR GLOSURE AND IS FOUND TO 8E ACCURATE Lot BLOCK
WITHIN ONE FOOT IN_[&, FEET.
’ '
. STEEL
EQUIPMENT UTILIZED: ANGULA I ywnear (CO PE. DEEDBOOK 2.5 35 PAGE <474
UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN THERE ARE NO NATIONAL GEODETIC SURVEY — =
MONUMENTS WITHIN 500' OF THIS PROPERTY. LAND LOT 53/
LARRY D. NEESE, GEORGIA REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR NO., 2235. DISTRICT /2 SECTION 2
o 20 ¢O 220 JEO COUNTY -~ 28 STATE GEORGIA
E L DATE [2-20-9/ REVISED

GRAPHIC SCALE
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WEST GEORGIA SURVEYING SERVICES,
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